

PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES POLICY

COUNCIL POLICY	
Document ID:	613552
Effective Date:	19 August 2020
Last Review:	-
Current Review:	-
Adopted by Council:	18 August 2020
Next Review Date:	June 2022
Responsible Officer/s:	Group Manager, Corporate & Community

Contents

1.	INTRODUCTION	4
2.	POLICY POSITION	4
3.	DEFINITIONS	5
4.	EXTERNAL REFERENCES	7
5.	RELATED COUNCIL DOCUMENTS	7
6.	POLICY OBJECTIVES	7
7.	REVIEW OF THIS POLICY	8
8.	WHAT IS A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE?	8
9.	WHO CAN MAKE A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE?	8
10.	HOW DO YOU MAKE A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE?	8
10.	1 Contact IBAC	8
10.	Contact Council's Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator	9
10.		
10.4		
10.	5 No Wrong Door	.11
11.	WHO CAN A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE BE ABOUT?	.11
12.	MATTERS THAT ARE NOT PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES	.11
13.	ROLE OF THE PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE COORDINATOR AND PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE OFFICERS	.11
14.	MAINTAINING CONFIDENTIALITY	.12
15.	MANAGING THE WELFARE OF THE COMPLAINANT AND THOSE AFFECTED BY THE DISCLOSURE	.13
16.	EDUCATION AND TRAINING FOR STAFF AND COUNCILLORS	.13
17.	REPORTING	.14
18.	OFFENCES FOR FALSE DISCLOSURES OR PROVIDING FALSE INFORMATION	.14
PAI	RT 2 PROCEDURES FOR THE RECEIPT, INITIAL ASSESSMENT AN REFERRAL OF A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE	
19.	OVERVIEW OF THE PROCESS ONCE A DISCLOSURE HAS BEEN LODGED WITH COUNCIL	.15
19.	1 Verbal disclosures	.15
19.	2 Written disclosures	.15
19.	Summary of the disclosure assessment process	.16
20.	INITIAL ASSESSMENT OF THE DISCLOSURE	.17
20.	1 Has the disclosure been made correctly?	.17

20.2	Is there evidence of improper conduct or detrimental action?	17
20.3	Are there reasonable grounds?	17
20.4	Seeking advice from IBAC	18
20.5	Conclusion that the matter is not a public interest disclosure	18
	PROTECTION FOR THE PERSON MAKING THE PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE	
22. (CONFIDENTIALITY	19
23. \	WELFARE OF THOSE INVOLVED IN THE MATTER	19
24. F	RESPONDING TO REPORTS OF DETRIMENTAL ACTION	20
	CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006 AND THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ACT 2010	21
26. F	FORMS	22
27. <i>F</i>	ATTACHMENT 1	29

1. INTRODUCTION

Council is a Nominated Agency under the *Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012* (the Act) with the power to receive disclosures relating to its employees, contractors, Council registered volunteers, Council appointed committee members or Councillors.

The Act requires Council to appoint a Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator and to set out clear policies and procedures for the receipt and referral of public interest disclosures to the relevant authority for further investigation.

This document is designed to ensure clear guidance is given to the community, Council employees and Councillors around how a disclosure could be made, how confidentiality will be assured and how Council will process the disclosure and decide whether the matter is a public interest disclosure that must be referred to an Investigating Entity for further review.

2. POLICY POSITION

Our Values and Council Plan highlight the need for openness, the highest ethical standards and transparency. Accordingly, Council encourages any member of the community, Council staff, members of Council appointed committees or Councillors to report any suspected improper conduct, corruption or detrimental action to either Council or directly to the Independent Broad-based Anti-Corruption Commission (IBAC) or Victorian Ombudsman.

Council takes its obligations as a Nominated Agency very seriously. While we are unable to determine the outcome of a public interest disclosure, we play a vital role in the receipt of complaints and provision of information for consideration by other bodies such as IBAC, the Victorian Inspectorate and the Integrity and Oversight Committee.

Council also wishes to assure anyone lodging, or thinking of lodging, a public interest disclosure that they will be dealt with in a confidential and supportive manner in accordance with the requirements of the Act.

We will also protect the confidentiality and welfare of others involved in any investigation as the welfare of all those involved in the matter is of paramount importance to us.

We will deal with any disclosure expeditiously and as a matter of operational priority.

We know the confidentiality of a person's identity is paramount to maintaining the integrity of Victoria's 'whistleblowing' system. The guidance and processes set out in this document are, therefore, aimed at protecting a complainant and anyone involved in providing information from bullying, harassment, legal action or any other form of detrimental action.

Council will afford natural justice to the person(s) whom is the subject of the disclosure and respect their right to confidentiality and support throughout the assessment of the disclosure and any subsequent investigation. It is important to remember that a matter remains an allegation only until the Public Interest Disclosure has been investigated and resolved.

3. **DEFINITIONS**

Complainant/discloser

means a person who has made a public interest disclosure to Council in accordance with the Act. which must then be assessed by the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator to ascertain if the matter must be referred to IBAC or another investigating entity for review and a determination.

Confidentiality obligations

means the obligations on those receiving information relating to a public interest disclosure to not disclose that information unless authorised by law. Confidentiality notices may also be issued in the investigation of a public interest complaint.

Confidentiality provisions also apply to the person lodging the public interest disclosure, restricting their ability to share information with others unless the external disclosures provisions of the means the definition under section 6 of the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 are applicable.

Coordinator

means the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator provided with delegated authority by the Chief Executive Officer of Strathbogie Shire Council under the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012.

Corrupt conduct

means the definition under the Independent Broad-Based Anti-corruption Commission Act 2011, such as dishonest performance of public functions or intentional or reckless misuse of public resources.

Council employees

means anyone employed by Strathbogie Shire Council, any contractor engaged by Council and any volunteers registered with Council.

Detrimental action

means any form of harassment, intimidation, discrimination, actions causing injury or loss or damage or any other action taken against the complainant (discloser) in reprisal for having reported the alleged conduct, participated in the investigation of a disclosure or action relating to someone who is considering making a disclosure. It includes actual actions taken and threats to take the action against any person, including the person who made the disclosure.

IBAC

means the Independent Broad-based Anticorruption Commission.

Improper conduct

means the definition under section 4 of the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012, which is corrupt conduct, a criminal offence, serious professional misconduct, dishonest performance of public functions, internal or reckless breach of public trust, intentional or reckless misuse of information, substantial mismanagement of public resources. substantial risk to the health or safety of a person, substantial risk to the environment, conduct of any person that adversely affects the honest

performance of a public officer; or conduct of a person that is intended to adversely affect the effective performance of a public officer for the

benefit of the other person.

Investigating entity

means those bodies listed in the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 to investigate public such as IBAC, the Victorian Inspectorate, Victorian Police

and the Victorian Ombudsman.

Misdirected disclosure means a disclosure made to the incorrect public

body but where the complainant believed that the public body was the correct authority to refer the complaint to (refer to section 18 of the Act). Such disclosures will still be provided with the same confidentiality protections of a disclosure and will be referred to IBAC for further assessment.

Nominated Agency means an agency nominated under Part 2 of the

Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 to receive

public interest disclosures.

Public body means the definition under section 6 of the Public

Interest Disclosures Act 2012.

Public interest complaint means a public interest disclosure that has been

determined by IBAC, the Victorian Inspectorate or the Integrity Oversight Committee to be a public interest complaint. Once a disclosure has been categorised as a public interest complaint, additional provisions of the Act apply and the way in which the matter is handled and investigated

changes.

Public interest disclosure means a report of suspected improper conduct or

detrimental action in the Victorian public sector that is made under Part 2, Division 2 of the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 where the information shows or tends to show that a public officer or body has engaged in, is engaging in, or proposes to engage in improper conduct or

detrimental action.

Public Interest Disclosure means the person appointed by the Chief Coordinator

Executive Officer the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 to receive, assess and if required refer public interest disclosures to the relevant

investigating authority.

Public Interest Disclosure

Officer

means an officer(s) appointed by the Chief Executive Officer to support the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator in receiving and managing

disclosures.

Public officer means the definition under section 6 of the Public

Interest Disclosures Act 2012.

Serious professional

misconduct

means conduct that constitutes a serious breach of an established professional code of conduct and/or other serious departures from the person's

professional responsibilities.

Public Interest Disclosures Policy 2020

Specified conduct means a broad range of conduct that does not

represent 'corrupt conduct' but where that conduct, if proven, constitutes a criminal offence or reasonable grounds for dismissal, such as substantial mismanagement of public resources, substantial risk to public health or safety or

involves substantial risk to the environment.

the Act means the *Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012.*

Victorian Inspectorate means the primary independent oversight body in

Victoria's integrity system that is not subject to direction or control by the executive government. The Coordinator, People & Culture shall be the welfare coordinator appointed at the request of

the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator or IBAC.

Welfare coordinator

4. EXTERNAL REFERENCES

Guidelines for making and handling protected disclosures, IBAC October 2016 (updated to reflect changes introduced in January 2020)

Guidelines for public interest disclosure welfare management, IBAC January 2020

Key changes – Integrity and Accountability Legislation Amendment (Public Interest Disclosures, Oversight and Independence) Act 2019

Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012

Public Interest Disclosures Regulations 2019

Public interest disclosure procedures: requirements for implementation, IBAC September 2019

5. RELATED COUNCIL DOCUMENTS

Councillor Code of Conduct 2017 Fraud and Corruption Policy 2017 Staff Code of Conduct April 2019

6. POLICY OBJECTIVES

This policy and its procedures apply to all Strathbogie Shire Council employees, Councillors and members of Council appointed committees are designed to ensure:

- Council meets its legislated obligations under the Public Interest
 Disclosures Act 2012 in relation to the receipt, initial assessment and any
 subsequent referral of a public interest disclosure to IBAC or another
 investigative entity.
- that Council employees and the community are provided with clear and consistent advice as to how a disclosure can be made, how it will be assessed and referred to an investigative entity if need be
- that a culture is created across the organisation that encourages and values the reporting of suspected improper conduct, detrimental action or corruption
- that operational priority is given to the receipt, assessment and referral of any public interest disclosure
- that a consistent and effective system is in place for the receipt and initial assessment of all disclosures made to Council

- that robust and consistent procedures are in place to protect the confidentiality and safety of the person making the public interest disclosure
- that the person making the public interest disclosure is kept informed of the progress of their complaint, is supported throughout the process and that no reprisals will result from them making the disclosure
- that processes are in place to protect the confidentiality and wellbeing of the person(s) whom are the subject of the disclosure and those cooperating with any investigation into the matter.

7. REVIEW OF THIS POLICY

This policy will be reviewed every 2 years unless the Chief Executive Officer or Council determines that an earlier review is required.

8. WHAT IS A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE?

A public interest disclosure is a report made under the *Public Interest Disclosure Act* 2012 that the person making the report believes shows or tends to show:

- improper conduct of a public body or a public officer; or
- detrimental action that a public officer or body has taken or has threatened to take against a person because they have made a public interest disclosure or cooperated with the investigation of a public interest disclosure.

A public interest disclosure can relate to something that has already taken place, may be occurring now or is suspected to happen in the future.

9. WHO CAN MAKE A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE?

Anyone may make a report of suspected or actual improper conduct or detrimental action that they believe relates to Strathbogie Shire Council, whether they be a member of the public, Councillors, Council employees, volunteers or members of Council appointed committees.

Council members, officers or employees cannot, however, make a public interest disclosure to Council if the conduct forming the basis of the disclosure relates to another entity or a member of Parliament. Such disclosures must be referred to IBAC directly.

Reports can be made by an individual or by a group of people. An employee of a company may make a report but the company, as an entity, cannot.

Anonymous reports can be made, however you must be aware that this may impact on the investigating entity's ability to assess whether your complaint fits the definition of a public interest disclosure. The consultation and notification requirements under the Act also do not apply if a disclosure is made anonymously.

You can also make a report even if you cannot identify the exact person or public body to which the disclosure relates.

10. HOW DO YOU MAKE A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE?

10.1 Contact IBAC

IBAC is the primary agency and investigative entity public interest disclosures relating to Council.

All protected disclosures relating to a Councillor(s) should be made directly to IBAC (or the Victorian Ombudsman).

More information about IBAC and how to lodge a disclosure with them can be found by using the following link:

https://www.ibac.vic.gov.au/reporting-corruption/public-interest-disclosures

Please use this link to access the IBAC secure online form .

You can also lodge a disclosure with IBAC:

By telephone: 1300 735 135 (between 10:00am - 4:00pm, Monday – Friday)

By fax: (03) 8635 6444

In person: Level 1, North Tower, 459 Collins Street, Melbourne VIC 3000

Reception hours: 9:00am - 4:30pm Monday - Friday

By email: info@ibac.vic.gov.au

By post: GPO Box 24234, Melbourne VIC 3001

You do not need to refer to the Public Interest Disclosures Act itself when making a disclosure.

10.2 Contact Council's Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator

Disclosures can also be made to the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator appointed by the Shire's Chief Executive Officer if the complaint relates to a Council employee, contractor, Council appointed committee member or Council registered volunteer.

We have created a form to assist you to make your disclosure, which can be found on our website.

You can lodge your public interest disclosure form or make your disclosure in person by contacting:

Mr David Roff (Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator) Strathbogie Shire Council

By telephone: 0429 082 292

By email: David.Roff@strathbogie.vic.gov.au

OR

Ms Dawn Bray (Public Interest Disclosure Officer) Strathbogie Shire Council

By telephone: 0407 611 240

By email: Dawn.Bray@strathbogie.vic.gov.au

OR

In person: 19A Binney Street, Euroa

OR

By post: PO Box 177, Euroa VIC 3666

Please ensure you mark the correspondence as PRIVATE and CONFIDENTIAL.

You may make a disclosure to the Chief Executive Officer or the manager/supervisor of the person who is the subject of your disclosure, however we strongly encourage you to contact nominated our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator or the Public Interest Disclosure Officer (unless, of course the complaint relates to that person) as they are specifically trained to handle these matters with maximum security and confidentiality.

If you are a Council employee, contractor or volunteer you can also make a disclosure to your manager or supervisor but again, we encourage you to contact our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator (unless, of course the complaint relates to that person) or one of the appointed Public Interest Disclosure Officers.

You do not need to refer to the Public Interest Disclosures Act itself when making a disclosure.

You can also choose to specify that your complaint is not to be treated as a protected disclosure.

10.3 **Contact the Victorian Ombudsman**

Complaints relating to Council under the Act can also be made to the Victorian Ombudsman. Any disclosure relating to a Councillor must either be made to the Ombudsman or IBAC.

You can lodge a disclosure by:

Using the online complaint form

By telephone: 9613 6222.

Level 2, 570 Bourke Street Melbourne VIC 3000 In person:

By email: ombudvic@ombudsman.vic.gov.au

10.4 Forms of disclosure

You can make a verbal disclosure in person, by phone or by leaving a voice mail message, however you must ensure you do so in private by making sure the only people that can hear the conversation are a lawyer who may be assisting you and the person to whom a disclosure can be made under the Act.

A group of individuals can lodge a verbal disclosure as a collective at the one time, again, provided it is done so in private.

You can make a written disclosure by delivering a letter in person, by posting your disclosure or by email. Please ensure you mark the correspondence as PRIVATE and CONFIDENTIAL.

Please remember that if you use email and the investigating entity is not able to identify the person lodging the disclosure from the email address or information provided in the email, it must be treated as an anonymous disclosure.

You do not need to refer to the Act itself when making a disclosure for the matter to be treated under the legislation.

Council Policy

You can also choose to specify that your complaint is not to be treated as a protected disclosure. If this is the case, our Public Interest Disclosures Coordinator will discuss the ways in which the matters you raise can be dealt with by Council.

10.5 No Wrong Door

If Council is not the correct agency to receive the public interest disclosure, and the person who made the disclosure believed that Council was the correct authority to report the issue to, Council will immediately notify the person lodging the disclosure that Council is not the appropriate authority and provide them with advice as to how to report the matter to IBAC or another appropriate agency.

11. WHO CAN A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE BE ABOUT?

A public interest disclosure can relate to a public body, which in this case is Council, a Councillor, Council employees, members of Council appointed committees, contractors or Council appointed volunteers.

12. MATTERS THAT ARE NOT PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES

Public interest disclosures must be made in a way that meets the Act (specifically Division 2 of Part 2), this policy and its procedures.

The following will not be considered by Council to be a public interest disclosure where:

- the disclosure has NOT been made in a way which meets the requirements of the Act, its Regulations, this policy and its procedures
- it has been clearly stated by the complainant that the matter is NOT to be considered as a public interest disclosure
- a complaint or allegation that is already in the public domain (e.g. if the matter had been reported to a journalist or discussed on social media)
- sections 19 and 20 of the Act identify that the complaint is not a public interest disclosure.

Having said that, if the disclosure is not made in accordance with the Act or Regulations, we will endeavour to assist the complainant to make the disclosure comply so that they are able to have their matter dealt with under the Act if possible.

Matters that are not public interest disclosures will be reviewed by the Public Interest Disclosures Officer to identify whether the issues raised should be treated as a complaint or whether some other Council policy or procedure, or indeed if any other legislation, applies to assist the complainant with having their concerns heard.

13. ROLE OF THE PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE COORDINATOR AND PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE OFFICERS

Detailed information around to the receipt, assessment and referral of public interest disclosures are outlined in the Procedures section of this document.

In summary, the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator is responsible for:

- being the primary contact person with IBAC
- putting into writing any oral disclosures

Council Policy

- being the primary contact person for the complainant and anyone involved in the matter
- constantly monitoring the welfare of those involved in the matter, including monitoring the workplace for any sign of potential detrimental action, gossip or the spreading of misinformation
- ensuring all provisions of the Act are followed
- keeping comprehensive records relating to the matter, including welfare risk assessments and notes around the ongoing monitoring of the workplace for potential detrimental action
- promoting a culture of disclosure within the organisation
- making arrangements for a disclosure to be made privately and discretely, away from the workplace
- receiving and undertaking the initial assessment of all disclosures, including ascertaining whether urgent action is required to be taken prior to an investigation or referral to IBAC given the nature of the allegations and information provided (e.g. where there is threat to the health and safety of individuals/the public or serious criminal conduct is alleged)
- ensuring all records and correspondence relating to the disclosure are kept in a strictly confidential file on Council's electronic document management system
- ensuring that the confidentiality provisions of the Act are strictly followed
- completing an impartial assessment of the disclosure to ascertain whether the allegations made need to be investigated and referred to IBAC under section 21 of the Act
- referring a disclosure assessed as possibly being a public interest disclosure to IBAC within 28 days of receipt of the report
- advising the person who has lodged the disclosure if the complaint does not meet the requirements of the Act and is not considered to be a public interest disclosure within 28 days of the receipt of the report
- collating statistics about public interest disclosures which are required to be published in Council's Annual Report.

Public Interest Disclosure Officers are appointed by the Chief Executive Officer to assist with the receipt of disclosures in the absence of the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator. The Coordinator can also request these appointed officers to assist with any matter as they see fit.

14. MAINTAINING CONFIDENTIALITY

The Act is clear in setting out requirements for the maintenance of the confidentiality of the person making the disclosure. Council will abide by these requirements.

The procedures attached to this policy provide detail around how the identity of the complainant and the contents of their disclosure will be kept confidential.

Our aim is to ensure as few people as possible are aware of the lodgement of a disclosure by channelling all complaints through our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator or if they are unavailable, an appointed Public Interest Disclosure Officer.

There are provisions under the Act protecting the identity of the person making the disclosure, however it must be noted that the person lodging the disclosure is the only one provided with such protection.

If someone is lodging a disclosure on behalf of someone else, it is the person who lodges the disclosure that is afforded protection under the Act in terms of their identity.

Council Policy Public Interest Disclosures Policy 2020 The person on whose behalf the disclosure is made will, however, be protected under the Act against detrimental action given they are involved in the matter.

The fact that a disclosure has been made and the people involved will remain confidential even if, after an initial assessment of the disclosure or an investigation, it has been found that the issues raised are unsubstantiated.

The person who is the subject of a disclosure (i.e. they have had allegations made against them) may not be made aware that the disclosure has been made. Each case will be different, however it is possible that the subject of the complaint will never know about the complaint should the matter be assessed as not being a public interest disclosure. Even if IBAC direct to that information be provided to the subject of the complaint, the information will be limited given the need to protect the identity of the discloser or anyone cooperating with an investigation.

15. MANAGING THE WELFARE OF THE COMPLAINANT AND THOSE AFFECTED BY THE DISCLOSURE

Council is committed to taking all possible reasonable steps to protect and support the welfare of the person making the disclosure, those involved in the investigation and the person(s) that are the subject of the disclosure.

The Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will be the person responsible for continuously assessing the welfare of those involved in the process and also making an initial assessment as to whether the Coordinator, Culture & Performance should be immediately appointed as the welfare coordinator.

As a minimum, access to the support of our Employee Assistance Program, which is a confidential and externally provided service, will be offered to all involved in the matter, including those who are external to the organisation.

Should the Coordinator or IBAC believe a dedicated welfare officer should be appointed, the Coordinator or one of the appointed Public Interest Disclosure Officers will be responsible for organising this support.

Further, we will support those involved by keeping them informed of the process, the actions we are going to take and how the initial assessment of the of the disclosure is progressing in a timely manner, and as an operational priority.

We will be honest and open about responding to the outcome(s) sought by the person making the disclosure and ensure that their expectations meet the parameters of the legislation.

Furthermore, any suspected or reported detrimental action being undertaken against anyone involved with the disclosure or any investigation will be dealt with firmly and swiftly, in accordance with legislation, the relevant Code of Conduct and any other Strathbogie Shire Council policies and procedures.

We will also monitor the welfare of those against whom the allegations are made. This is particularly important if the allegations were wrong or unsubstantiated, or the complaint has not been classified as a public interest disclosure and is to be dealt with through other Council policy mechanisms (e.g. the matter is to be dealt with as a complaint).

16. EDUCATION AND TRAINING FOR STAFF AND COUNCILLORS

All Councillors and Council employees will be required to read this policy and make themselves familiar with its provisions. All will be required to refresh their knowledge and understanding of this policy and its procedures on an annual basis through

Council Policy Public Interest Disclosures Policy 2020 Council's online learning platform. New employees will also receive a copy of this policy through the induction process.

Training will be provided by a suitably qualified legal expert for the Executive Management Team and all people leaders every two years, or as required should legislation change significantly within this time.

Protected disclosures will also be a topic covered in the induction of new Councillors.

The Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will receive specialised training to ensure that they are always up to date with best practice any changes to legislation.

17. REPORTING

Council, as a public body that can receive disclosures, must include statistics about how many disclosures have been notified/referred to IBAC during each financial year in its Annual Report. This information must be crafted in a way that does not make the identification of the person who has disclosed a matter traceable.

18. OFFENCES FOR FALSE DISCLOSURES OR PROVIDING FALSE INFORMATION

Section 72 of the Act outlines that it is an offence, punishable either by a fine, imprisonment or both, to:

- make a false disclosure
- provide misleading or false information
- provide false or misleading further information
- falsely claim the disclosure is a public interest disclosure of public interest complaint.

A person or people wishing to make a disclosure must, therefore, make every effort to ensure the information they have been provided with, or are providing to, Council or an investigating entity, is not false or misleading.

PART 2 PROCEDURES FOR THE RECEIPT, INITIAL ASSESSMENT AND REFERRAL OF A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE

19. OVERVIEW OF THE PROCESS ONCE A DISCLOSURE HAS BEEN LODGED WITH COUNCIL

19.1 Verbal disclosures

If the disclosure is made through verbal communication, whether at a meeting with Council's Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator, the Chief Executive Officer or a manager, or via voicemail, the staff member receiving the disclosure will take notes while the disclosure is being made. The details of the time and place the report was made must also be noted.

The staff member may seek the complainant's agreement to the verbal disclosure being recorded, however the complainant has the right to decline this offer.

A summary of the disclosure will then be read out by the staff member to the complainant to ensure that they have understood the matters being raised and the details of any events or evidence provided.

If the person hearing the complaint is not the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator, the matter must be referred to the Coordinator within 24 hours of receipt of the disclosure. The matter will then be dealt with by the Coordinator from this point onwards.

The Coordinator will contact the complainant and provide a written summary of the information provided during the verbal disclosure to the complainant for review and confirmation within seven (7) days of the disclosure being made. This correspondence will also highlight to the complainant that it is an offence under section 74 of the Act to reveal that the disclosure has been referred to IBAC for assessment.

19.2 Written disclosures

All disclosures received in writing must be referred to Council's Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator within 24 hours of receipt.

The Coordinator will save the disclosure and any other written documentation to a confidential file on Council's electronic document management system. Access to this file is strictly limited to the Coordinator however, should a complaint relate to the Public Interest Coordinator the Chief Executive Officer will request that access rights to the documentation be changed to themselves and, if required, another senior executive.

The Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will make initial verbal contact with the complainant within 48 hours of the receipt of the correspondence and follow up with confirmation of its receipt within seven (7) days.

19.3 Summary of the disclosure assessment process

Our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will assess your complaint to ensure:

- Council is the correct body to make the complaint to (if we are not they will assist you in finding the right authority); and
- your complaint can be dealt with as a public interest complaint.

A welfare risk assessment will also be undertaken to make sure you have the support you need.

Our Public linterest DiscIsoure Coordinator will provide you with verbal updates as to the progress of their assessment.

The Coordiinator has a maximumum of 28 days to inform you both verbally and in writing of the outcome if the assessment.

If our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator agrees that your complaint IS a public interest disclsoure, they will immediately refer the matter to IBAC. Any relevant information found by the Coordinator during their investigation and assessment will be forwarded to IBAC.

You will be informed of when this is done both in writing and verbally to ensure you are kept informed of the progress of your disclosure at all times.

If your complaint has been assessed as **NOT** being a public interest disclosure, our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will discuss alternate courses of action open to you for the issues you raise to be dealt with. Again, this will be done both verbally and in writing.

Once the matter has been referred to IBAC, they will review your disclosure and determine if they belive it is a public interest disclosure.

 $\ensuremath{\mathsf{IBAC}}$ will investigate the matter further if they agree that it is a public interest discl soure.

IBAC may contact you either through Council's Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator or directly.

Our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will keep in contact with you to ensure you have the information you need and that your welfare is assessed on an ongoing basis.

Should you have any questions or concerns throughout the process, even if the matter is referred to IBAC, our Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will assist you as much as they can.

20. INITIAL ASSESSMENT OF THE DISCLOSURE

20.1 Has the disclosure been made correctly?

The Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator must firstly ensure that:

- the disclosure has been made by a person or group of people (i.e. not a company or authority)
- it has been made verbally (in private) or confidentially in writing
- the disclosure relates to Strathbogie Shire Council, a Council employee, Councillor or member of a Council appointed committee that is affecting, or may affect in the future, the honest performance of a body or public officer's official function.

If the answer to one or more of these questions is NO, then the matter is probably not a public interest disclosure.

20.2 Is there evidence of improper conduct or detrimental action?

The Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator must then assess whether the information disclosed shows, or tends to show, that there is improper conduct or detrimental action that has been taken, is being taken or about to be taken by either a person, public officer or public body. The seriousness of the conduct and its consequences must also be considered.

The definitions of improper conduct and detrimental action under the Act must be met and the Coordinator will review the information provided by the complainant to decide whether these definitions are met or whether any exemptions under the Act apply.

In undertaking this initial assessment, the Coordinator may seek further information from the complainant and undertake a discrete and confidential initial investigation.

Some of the questions that need to be considered during this process include:

- What is the discloser's connection to the alleged conduct are they a victim, a witness or a participant?
- How did the person become aware of the conduct? Were they involved? Did they witness the conduct or were they told second or third hand about it?
- How detailed is the information provided? Is there enough information for an initial assessment of the disclosure to be undertaken?
- How reliable is the information? Is there other supporting information?

Should the Coordinator believe that there is information to satisfy the requirements of the Act, then the matter will be referred to IBAC within the prescribed 28-day notification period. The person making the disclosure will also be notified verbally and in writing that this referral has taken place.

If the Coordinator does not believe that there is information to satisfy the requirements of the Act, they must make an assessment under section 20.5.

20.3 Are there reasonable grounds?

A matter can be considered to be a public interest disclosure if the person making it believes, on reasonable grounds, that the factual information disclosed shows, or tends to show, that there is improper conduct or detrimental action that has been taken, is being taken or about to be taken by either a person, public officer or public body.

This means that a reasonable person, if presented the information, would conclude that the allegations were probable.

The information provided by the disclosure does not have to provide undisputed evidence of the improper conduct or detrimental action, but it must be more than just suspicion.

However, simply stating that improper conduct or detrimental action has, is or is going to take place is not enough for a matter to be considered a public interest disclosure – there has to be some factual information either provided by the complainant or that is uncovered in the initial assessment of the matter.

Should the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator believe that there is sufficient evidence to satisfy the requirements of the Act, then the matter will be referred to IBAC within the prescribed 28-day notification period.

20.4 Seeking advice from IBAC

If the Coordinator is in any doubt during their initial assessment, they must contact IBAC for advice before making a conclusion as to whether the matter is a public interest disclosure that requires referral to either IBAC or another investigative entity.

20.5 Conclusion that the matter is not a public interest disclosure

If the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator believes that, after undertaking the steps outlined in sections 20.1 to 20.3, that the matter <u>does not meet</u> the tests set out in the Act, and therefore it cannot be classified as a public interest disclosure, the person making the disclosure will also be notified verbally and in writing of this decision.

The notification will outline the reasons why the disclosure does not show or tend to show that improper conduct or detrimental action has, is or may occur and provide alternative courses of action to have their matter dealt with by Council or another appropriate body.

The complainant will also be notified that the protections around their identity and the complaint under Part 6 of the Act still apply even though the matter is not considered to be a public interest disclosure if the person making the complaint has asked for the protections of the Act.

This decision and correspondence must be made within 28 days of the receipt of the disclosure under section 24(4)(b) of the Act.

21. PROTECTION FOR THE PERSON MAKING THE PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE

Part 6 of the Act outlines the protections to be given to the person making the complaint if it has been made in a way that meets Division 2, Part 2 of the Act or if it is a misdirected disclosure. The protections also apply to any further information provided by the person after making the initial complaint.

Generally speaking, the protections provided by the Act include:

- immunity from civil or criminal liability for making the disclosure
- release from confidentiality requirements, an oath, affirmation or agreement to restrict the disclosure of information
- protection from defamation action
- protection from reprisals following the disclosure.

These protections also relate to other people involved in an investigation undertaken by IBAC or an investigative entity.

22. CONFIDENTIALITY

Part 7 of the Act outlines confidentiality provisions for disclosures which relates to the identity of the person making the initial disclosure and the information/details of the disclosure itself.

The provisions apply to a person or body:

- that receives a disclosure in the performance of their duties under the Act (such as the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator)
- to whom an investigating authority provides information about the content of a disclosure to determine if it is a public interest complaint
- identified under section 52 of the Act.

Please note there are exemptions outlined under section 54, such as the release of information to an investigating entity so that it can undertake its functions under the Act or the commissioning of legal advice.

The Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator, or the person who has received the initial complaint must ensure that all details relating to the matter are kept confidential, only informing the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator if the Coordinator was not the person who received the initial complaint.

The Chief Executive Officer will be informed of the matter should the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator decide that the disclosure needs to be referred to IBAC or another investigating agency.

No other party is to be informed of the matter, even while a discrete initial assessment of the complaint is being undertaken to determine whether the matter is a public interest disclosure that requires referral to IBAC.

It must be noted that significant penalties, including imprisonment, can apply if the confidentiality provisions of the Act are not met.

Section 78 of the Act also ensures that the *Freedom of Information Act 1982* does not apply to a document that is in the possession of any person or body so far as it relates to a disclosure or will lead to the identification of a person who made a disclosure.

23. WELFARE OF THOSE INVOLVED IN THE MATTER

As outlined in the Policy, the Public Interest Disclosures Coordinator will undertake a welfare risk analysis for both the complainant and those potentially involved in the matter upon the receipt of a disclosure.

This assessment will include whether a dedicated Welfare Coordinator is required to be appointed for the person making the disclosure and any other party involved, including other people (whether internal to Council or external) that are cooperating with any inquiry undertaken by IBAC or another investigative entity.

Generally speaking, a Welfare Coordinator will only be appointed:

- if there is a real risk of detrimental action
- if IBAC directs Council to appoint one should a disclosure lead to further investigations
- if it is considered the welfare of those named or involved in the disclosure or any investigation requires the support of specialist welfare experts.

The Public Interest Disclosures Coordinator will provide ongoing welfare analysis and support throughout the process by:

- assuring the complainant and anyone cooperating with an investigation that they are doing the right thing
- assuring those involved that all reasonable steps to provide them with the protections required under the Act will be taken
- ensuring the complainant and those cooperating with any investigation understand that they must not reveal themselves or any information that would enable an independent person to identify them or that a disclosure has been made
- ensuring all parties have up to date information both verbally and in writing
- ensuring that any queries from any involved parties are answered expeditiously
- continuously monitoring the workplace, anticipating problems that may heighten the risk of detrimental action being taken in reprisal for making or cooperating with a disclosure
- listening and promptly responding to any concerns those involved in the matter have about harassment, intimidation or victimisation.

24. RESPONDING TO REPORTS OF DETRIMENTAL ACTION

If a report is made of harassment, discrimination or adverse treatment that may amount to detrimental action apparently taken in reprisal for a disclosure, the Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator or Welfare Manager (if one has been appointed and the report is made to them) must record details of the incident and advise the person of their rights under the Act.

Detrimental action is considered to have been taken:

- the person takes, or threatens to take, detrimental action against the other person because, or in the belief that:
 - the other person or anyone else has made, or intends to make, the disclosure;
 or
 - the other person or anyone else has cooperated, or intends to cooperate, with an investigation of the disclosure; or
 - o for either of the reasons above, the person incites or permits someone else to take or threaten to take detrimental action against the other person.

It is a criminal offence to take detrimental action against another person in reprisal for a public interest disclosure under the Act. The penalty for this offence is a fine, two years imprisonment or both.

The Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator will be careful about making preliminary enquiries or gathering information concerning this type of allegation so that, to the extent it is reasonably able to, it protects the integrity of any evidence that might be later relied upon in a criminal prosecution.

Furthermore, the taking of detrimental action in reprisal for making a disclosure can be grounds for a person to make a further disclosure with respect to that conduct.

The disclosure of this allegation will then be assessed as a new disclosure under Part 2 of the Act.

Where the detrimental action is of a serious nature likely to amount to a criminal offence, the Council will also consider reporting the matter immediately to the Police or IBAC (if the matter was not already the subject of a disclosure notified to IBAC).

The person who has made the public interest disclosure may also:

- take civil action against the person who took detrimental action against the discloser and seek damages;
- take civil action against Council and severally to seek damages if the person who
 took detrimental action against the discloser took that action in the course of
 employment with, or while acting as an agent of Council; and
- apply for an order or an injunction from the Supreme Court.

25. CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006 AND THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ACT 2010

The Council acknowledges the legal responsibility to comply with the Charter of *Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 and the Equal Opportunity Act 2010.* The Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 is designed to protect the fundamental rights and freedoms of citizens. The Charter gives legal protection to 20 fundamental human rights under four key values that include freedom, respect, equality and dignity.

26. FORMS



PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM

Council can receive public interest disclosures relating to Council employees, Councillors, contractors, Council registered volunteers and members appointed by Council to committees.

A public interest disclosure can be made about something that has already happened, that is happening now or that you believe is likely to happen in the future.

This form has been created to make it as easy as possible for you to make a disclosure under the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012.

Please provide as much information as possible and be clear about what you are alleging has happened, is happening or you believe may happen.

Need help?

If you are vision impaired and want to submit a verbal complaint instead, please contact David Roff, Protected Disclosure Coordinator, on 1800 065 993.

If you have any questions relating to this process, please also contact David on the above number.

Do you wish to make an anonymous complaint? YES□ NO□ Please note that if you do make an anonymous complaint this will impact on our ability to seek further information and investigate the matter. It will also make it
impossible for us to contact you with the outcome of our consideration of the issue you raise.
Are you making this complaint as an individual? YES NO Are you making this complaint as a group of people? YES NO

Title Choose an item. Curname Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here to enter text.				
	n tial address er and street name	-	tap here to enter to enter text.	ter text.
	address ress the same as ald de your postal add		YES □NO tap here to ent	ter text.
4. Your contact Phone number Email	ct details Click or tap here to er Click or tap here to er			
5. What is the I Phone Email Letter/Post	best way for us to c	ontact you?		
6. Do you nee	d an interpreter?	YES 🗆 I	NO 🗆	
7. Do you nee	d a communication	n aid? YES □ I	NO 🗆	
	R ALLEGATIONS YO			
	king this disclosure to question 9			
You can make a chave their written	disclosure on behal consent.	lf of someone	else, but you	u must
Disclosures Act 20 you are lodging the have the protection	ne confidentiality particles in the perme disclosure on be on afforded to pecaryou, as the disclosured by the Act.	rson who mak half of somec ople cooperat	es the disclo one else, they ing with any	<u>sure</u> . If y will only

9. Does the person you are make know that you are lodging it on the second seco	ing the disclosure on behalf of on their behalf?	
If you are lodging the disclosure on behalf of someone else, you must have their written consent to do so by completing the form at Attachment 1.		
Council and any investigating authors Broad-based Anti-Corruption Common consent as part of the information p	nission, will require a copy of this	
10. If you have answered yes to questions 8 and 9, please provide the information required below.		
1	enter text. here to enter text. here to enter text.	
Their residential address Unit/House number and street name Town/suburb Postcode State	Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here to enter text.	
11. What is your relationship with the person whom you are making the disclosure on behalf of?		
l am a: Parent □ Sibling □ Friend □ Other □	Child Partner Work colleague	
12. Please explain why you are manother person.	naking this disclosure on behalf of	

13.	Who does your di	sclosure r	elate to in Council?	
	f member uncil contractor		Councillor Council registered volunteer	
	nber of a Council co ase identify the Cor		you can) Click or tap here to enter tex	ζt.
l am	not sure			
14.	What is the nature	of your d	lisclosure?	
This profinter of insubstant of the substant o	essional misconduc rnal or reckless brea Iformation, substanti stantial risk to the he ironment, conduct o	t, dishone ch of pub ial mismar alth or saf of any per	nduct, criminal offences, serious st performance of public function lic trust, intentional or reckless mis nagement of public resources, fety of a person, substantial risk to son that affects the honest nance of a public officer.	use
This cau pers disc may	sing injury or loss or o son who has made, losure. It includes a or is cooperating w	damage of the contraction of the	nt, intimidation, discrimination, ac or any other action taken against ng of making, a public interest ental action against anyone who vestigation of a public interest nental action may also be disclos	а
l wa	=		re of the alleged behavior? I was told about it I am a victim of the behavior up here to enter text.	
	Yes \square	No \Box ments to $\underline{\cdot}$	nts to support your disclosure? your email or post them to Counc l'.	il
app	u don't know an ex proximate date or tin	act time one, for exc	viour occur? or date please provide an ample October 2019. If the allege nce, please list all of the dates.	ed

18. Details of the public interest disclosure

Please provide as much information as possible in relation to:

- ✓ who the allegations relate to (ie was it one person or a group of people)?
- ✓ dates and times the alleged behavior occurred
- ✓ whether there were any other witnesses (and any information you can provide to identify them)
- ✓ where the alleged behaviour occur (eg in Council's office, on site)
- ✓ any other information such as identity badge of the person(s), car registration number.

19.	Did anyone else witness the behaviour you are making a
	disclosure about?

If yes, please provide as much detail about the other witness(es) as you can:

20. What was the impact of the behaviour you are making a disclosure about?

For example, personal injury, financial loss/gain, personal or professional loss, public safety risk, environmental risk.

DECLARATION

public inter-	est disclosure.
	To the best of my knowledge, the information I have
	provided in my public interest disclosure is correct.
	I understand it is an offence to make a false disclosure or
	provide false information.
	I understand that the information provided on this form
	may need to be referred to an investigating authority such
	as the Independent Broad-based Anti-Corruption
	Commission (IBAC).
	I am making this public interest disclosure on behalf of

someone else and have completed Attachment 1.

Please make sure you complete this section before you submit your

Your name: Click or tap here to enter text.

Date: Click or tap to enter a date.

HOW TO SEND THIS FORM TO COUNCIL

Once you have completed this form, please submit it, along with any supporting documentation either by:

EMAIL: <u>David.Roff@strathbogie.vic.gov.au</u>

BY POST: Mr David Roff

Public Interest Disclosure Coordinator

Strathbogie Shire Council

PO Box 177 EUROA VIC 3666

IN PERSON: Deliver this form to the Euroa Service Centre or arrange to

hand it to David Roff in person.

Please ensure you mark the email or envelope PRIVATE and CONFIDENTIAL.

27. ATTACHMENT 1

AUTHORITY TO MAKE A PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE ON SOMEONE'S BEHALF

I (full name) Click or tap here to enter text.

Of (full address) Click or tap here to enter text.

authorise (person's name) Click or tap here to enter text. (if a legal representative, their business name and address) Click or tap here to enter text.

To act on my behalf in regard to the lodgment of this public interest disclosure to Council. This authorisation includes:

- receiving and submitting documentation on my behalf;
- obtaining and providing personal information relevant to the public interest disclosure; and
- corresponding with Council and any other investigative authority both verbally and in writing.

Your signature: Click or tap here to enter text.

Your name: Click or tap here to enter text.

Date: Click or tap to enter a date.

Privacy statement

Strathbogie Shire Council is committed to guarding against the misuse, loss or unauthorized disclosure of personal information in accordance with the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and Council's Privacy and Data Protection Policy, which can be accessed by clicking on the following link

https://www.strathbogie.vic.gov.au/images/Plans_policies_Strategies_r eports/2018%20Policy-

Privacy%20and%20Data%20Protection%20Policy.pdf